
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

                                                                              
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Thursday, June 30, 2016  – 3:00 p.m. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom – M2-01 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
(1) Agenda         Pages 2-3 
            
(2) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
    of the Meeting of June 2, 2016      Pages 4-11 
              
(3) Gifts and Grants        Pages 12-13 
         
(4) Minutes of the June 6, 2016 Audit Committee    Pages 14-75 
 
(5) Minutes of the June 22, 2016 Business Affairs Committee   Pages 76-83 
  
 
 

######## 
 

1



 
 

 

 

 

                       
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AGENDA 

Thursday, June 30, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 
Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
(2) Consent Agenda 
 

(a) Fixed Stair Replacement in West Building 
(b) Solar Panel Project 
(c) 2016-17 Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal Program 
(d) Consultant for CCTV System for College Security 

 
(3) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 
 

(a) 2016-17 College Operating and Capital Budget   (A) 
 
(4) Report of the Audit Committee     (A) 

 
(5) Public Comment 

 
(6) New Business 
 
(7) Next Meeting:   Thursday, September 1, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 
    Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom – M2-1 
 
     
Future Committee Meetings: 
 

Student Outcomes:    Thursday, September 1, 2016 
      1:00 p.m. – M2-34  

       
Business Affairs:    Wednesday, September 21, 2016 
      10:00 a.m. – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 
Audit Committee:    Thursday, September 29, 2016 
      12:00 p.m. – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 

 

2



 
 
Upcoming Events: 
 
 Foundation Annual Golf Classic:  Monday, July 25, 2016 
       11:30 a.m. 
       Manufacturer’s Golf and Country Club 
       511 Dreshertown Road 
       Fort Washington, PA 
 
 46th Annual ACCT Leadership Congress October 5-8, 2016 
       New Orleans, LA 
 
 

####### 

3



 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 

Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Thursday, June 2, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Mr. White, presiding; Mr. Armbrister, Mr. Bergheiser, Ms. Biemiller, Mr. 

Edwards, Ms. Hernández Vélez, Mr. Herzog, Ms. Horstmann, Ms. Tsai, Dr. 
Generals, Ms. de Fries, Ms. DiGregorio, Mr. Eapen, Dr. Gay, Dr. Hirsch, Mr. 
Murphy, and Ms. Zellers 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of real estate matters. 
 
(2) Meeting Called to Order 
 
 Mr. White called the meeting to order. 
 
(3) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 
 
(3a) Presentation of 15th and Hamilton Street Development 
 
 Mr. White reported that the College issued an RFP for private developers to enter a 
public-private partnership with the College to develop the College’s property located at 440 N. 
15th Street to create a mixed-use development comprised of student housing, market-rate 
housing, retail amenities, and for the ongoing management of the property. 
 
 Mr. White stated that four developers, namely, Radnor Property Group, LLC; The PRC 
Group; University Student Living; and The Goldenberg Group responded timely to the RFP 
issued on January 29, 2016.  The Goldenberg Group was disqualified for submitting a non-
responsive or incomplete proposal.  The three developers who submitted complete, responsive 
proposals were invited on April 8, 2016 to provide presentations to the College’s selection 
committee which included one Trustee, and other College representatives.  The three developers 
were evaluated after the presentation on the selection criteria, and the top two developers, 
Radnor Property Group, LLC, and The PRC Group were selected as finalists and offered an 
opportunity to provide a best and final offer.  Both developers were invited back on May 16 to 
present to the College’s selection committee which included two Trustees, President Generals, 
and other College representatives. 
 
 Following the presentations, the College’s selection committee reviewed the materials 
submitted and presented by the finalists and evaluated the finalists based on the selection criteria.  
Mr. White stated that Radnor Property Group was ranked higher based on the selection criteria.  
Mr. White stated that Radnor Property Group’s proposal was viewed as better meeting the 
College’s goals for world class facilities, providing a greater variety of housing options, offered 
more affordable housing options for both student and non-student housing, and had a more 
desirable architectural design that fits the urban landscape.  Additionally, Radnor Property Group 

4



has substantial experience with long-term ground lease transactions and public-private 
partnerships with colleges and universities.  Mr. White stated that the selection committee was 
recommending The Radnor Property Group for this project.   
 

Mr. White introduced Mr. David Yeager, President of Radnor Property Group and 
members of his staff, who provided the Board with a detailed presentation of the development 
for the 15th and Hamilton Street property. 
 
(4) Approval of Developer for the 15th & Hamilton Street Project  

 
Mr. White read the following Resolution for Board approval: 
 
WHEREAS, Community College of Philadelphia (the “College”) issued a Request for 

Proposal for private developers to submit proposals to enter a public-private partnership with the 
College, develop the College’s property located at 440 N. 15th Street to create a mixed-use 
development comprised of student housing, market-rate housing, and retail amenities, and for the 
ongoing management of the property (the “15th & Hamilton Project”); 

WHEREAS, after review of the materials submitted by the developers, as well as initial 
and finalist presentations to the College, the College has evaluated the proposals submitted based 
on the selection criteria identified in the Request for Proposal; 

WHEREAS, the College has identified Radnor Property Group, LLC as the developer 
with the proposal that best meets the College’s selection criteria and overall goals for the project; 

NOW THEREFORE, on this second day of June, 2016, it is resolved that the Board of 
Trustees authorizes the College to execute a Letter of Intent and Non-Disclosure Agreement with 
Radnor Property Group, LLC to commence due diligence and negotiate the terms of a ground 
lease for the 15th & Hamilton Project.   

 
Mr. White moved, with Ms. Hernández Vélez seconding, that the Board approve the 

above Resolution.  The motion carried, with Mr. Bergheiser and Ms. Tsai abstaining.   
 
(5) Report of the Student Outcomes Committee 
 
 Ms. Hernández Vélez reported that the Student Outcomes Committee did not meet.  
Board Committee members will be contacted to reschedule meeting. 
 
(6) Consent Agenda 
 
 Mr. White requested Board approval of the following Consent Agenda: 
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
Meeting of May 5, 2016 

(b) Gifts and Grants  
 

5



(c) Academic Program Audit: Applied Science and  
Engineering Technology A.A.S.  

(d) Academic Program Audit: Technical Studies A.A.S.  
 

Ms. Hernández Vélez moved, with Mr. Armbrister seconding, that the Board approve the 
Consent Agenda.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
(7) Public Comment 
 
 Mr. White reported that there were no requests for Public Comment. 
 
(8) Report of the Chair 
 
(8a) Board Governance 
 
 Mr. Armbrister reported that the Ad Hoc Committee on Governance, consisting of 
himself, Ms. Hernández Vélez, and Ms. McPherson, had met several times to review Board 
structure, practices and procedures to determine whether the current structure provides the best 
possible conditions for meeting the strategic objectives of the College.   
 
 Mr. Armbrister reviewed a presentation of the discussions of the Committee.  He stated 
that the comments were more observations than recommendations regarding Board governance.  
Mr. Armbrister stated that the questions raised by the Committee can be conducive in engaging 
in conversations moving forward.  Mr. Armbrister stated that these conversations can be part of 
the College’s strategic planning process which is ongoing.  
 
 Mr. Armbrister stated that as next steps, the College should move forward in 
recommending non-affiliate members to Board of Trustees committees.   
 
(8b) Rescheduling of October 6, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
 Mr. White stated that due to a conflict with the Association of Community College 
Trustees Annual Congress, the October 6, 2016 Board meeting will be rescheduled for Thursday, 
October 13, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom.   
 
(8c) Special Board Meeting for Approval of College Budget 
 Thursday, June 30, 2016, 3:00 p.m., Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom 
 
 Mr. White stated that a special meeting of the Board of Trustees will be scheduled for 
Thursday, June 30, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom to approve the 
College’s Budget.  He stated that the approval of the budget was delayed from the normal 
timeframe as the College is awaiting more information on the College’s local and state sponsor 
contribution.   
 
 
 

6



 
 
(8d) Association of Community College Trustees 
 Faculty Award 
 
 Mr. White reported that the College has submitted a nomination for the Association of 
Community College Trustees Faculty Award.  He stated that the College has submitted Kathleen 
Smith, J.D., Coordinator of the Paralegal Studies Program and Director of the College’s Center 
for Law and Society.   Mr. White stated that Ms. Smith had dedicated herself to paralegal 
education and through the Center for Law and Society, which she created and directs, develops 
student learning opportunities, supports, student research projects, and runs a national recognized 
Reentry Support endeavor.  Mr. White stated that Ms. Smith is an excellent candidate for the 
award. 
 
(9) Nominating Committee for Board Officers 
 
 Mr. White reminded members of the Board to submit their nominations for Board 
Officers to Mr. Lassiter as soon as possible. 
 
(10) Report of the President 
 
 Dr. Generals called attention to his memorandum in the Board folder which outlined the 
list of his activities during the month of May, and summarized the highlights. 
 

Dr. Generals reported that the College hosted the Greater Philadelphia Chamber of 
Commerce’s Roadmap for Growth Policy Forum on May 24, 2016.  This policy forum featured 
Chief Education Officer for the City of Philadelphia Otis Hackney, who provided details of the 
Kenney Administration’s plans to better support our long-term workforce and talent needs 
through education initiatives.  The panel consisted of Dr. Generals, Dr. William Hite, Chief 
Executive Officer and Superintendent of the School District of Philadelphia; Mr. Daniel 
Fitzpatrick, President and Chief Executive Officer of Citizens Bank; Ms. Nicole Anderson, 
President of AT&T Foundation; and Robert Poliseno, Regional Executive Officer of Chubb.  

 
Dr. Generals reported that the College is hosting, today, the 2016 PHL Diversity/Greater 

Philadelphia Hotel Association Hospitality Education Day in the Winnet Student Life Building.  
He stated that over 200 high schools students from the School District of Philadelphia are on 
Campus attending the various workshops focusing on careers in culinary arts.   

 
Dr. Generals urged members of the Board to complete the Strategic Planning Survey.  He 

stated that he would like to plan a Board Retreat in October, November or December.  He stated 
that the Retreat will focus on strategic planning.   

 
Dr. Generals reported that a special meeting of the Board of Trustees will take place on 

Thursday, June 30, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. to approve the College’s budget. 
 
 

7



 
(11) New Business 
 
 No new business was discussed at the meeting. 
 
(12) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, June 30, 2016 at 
3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 4:55 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

8



 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 

Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Thursday, June 2, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 

MINUTES OF DECISIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
Present: Mr. White, presiding; Mr. Armbrister, Mr. Bergheiser, Ms. Biemiller, Mr. 

Edwards, Ms. Hernández Vélez, Mr. Herzog, Ms. Horstmann, Ms. Tsai, Dr. 
Generals, Ms. de Fries, Ms. DiGregorio, Mr. Eapen, Dr. Gay, Dr. Hirsch, Mr. 
Murphy, and Ms. Zellers 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of real estate matters. 
 
(2) Meeting Called to Order 
 
 Mr. White called the meeting to order. 
 
(3) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 
 
(3a) Presentation of 15th and Hamilton Street Development 
 

Mr. David Yeager, President of Radnor Property Group and members of his staff, 
provided the Board with a detailed presentation of the development for the 15th and Hamilton 
Street property. 
 
(4) Approval of Developer for the 15th & Hamilton Street Project  

 
The Board approved the following Resolution:  
 
WHEREAS, Community College of Philadelphia (the “College”) issued a Request for 

Proposal for private developers to submit proposals to enter a public-private partnership with the 
College, develop the College’s property located at 440 N. 15th Street to create a mixed-use 
development comprised of student housing, market-rate housing, and retail amenities, and for the 
ongoing management of the property (the “15th & Hamilton Project”); 

WHEREAS, after review of the materials submitted by the developers, as well as initial 
and finalist presentations to the College, the College has evaluated the proposals submitted based 
on the selection criteria identified in the Request for Proposal; 

WHEREAS, the College has identified Radnor Property Group, LLC as the developer 
with the proposal that best meets the College’s selection criteria and overall goals for the project; 

NOW THEREFORE, on this second day of June, 2016, it is resolved that the Board of 
Trustees authorizes the College to execute a Letter of Intent and Non-Disclosure Agreement with 

9



Radnor Property Group, LLC to commence due diligence and negotiate the terms of a ground 
lease for the 15th & Hamilton Project.   

 
 (5) Report of the Student Outcomes Committee 
 
 The Student Outcomes Committee did not meet.  Board Committee members will be 
contacted to reschedule meeting. 
 
(6) Consent Agenda 
 
 The Board approved the following Consent Agenda: 
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
Meeting of May 5, 2016 

(b) Gifts and Grants  
(c) Academic Program Audit: Applied Science and  

Engineering Technology A.A.S.  
(d) Academic Program Audit: Technical Studies A.A.S.  

 
(7) Public Comment 
 
 There were no requests for Public Comment. 
 
(8) Report of the Chair 
 
(8a) Board Governance 
 
 On behalf of the Ad Hoc Committee on Governance, Mr. Armbrister reviewed a 
presentation of discussions by the Committee.   
 
(8b) Rescheduling of October 6, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
 The October 6, 2016 Board meeting will be rescheduled for Thursday, October 13, 2016 
at 3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom.   
 
(8c) Special Board Meeting for Approval of College Budget 
 Thursday, June 30, 2016, 3:00 p.m., Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom 
 
 A special meeting of the Board of Trustees will be scheduled for Thursday, June 30, 2016 
at 3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom to approve the College’s Budget.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



(8d) Association of Community College Trustees 
 Faculty Award 
 
 The College nominated Kathleen Smith, J.D., Coordinator of the Paralegal Studies 
Program and Director of the College’s Center for Law and Society for the Association of 
Community College Trustees Faculty Award.   
 
(9) Nominating Committee for Board Officers 
 
 Board members were reminded to submit their nominations for Board Officers to Mr. 
Lassiter as soon as possible. 
 
(10) Report of the President 
 
 Dr. Generals called attention to his memorandum in the Board folder which outlined the 
list of his activities during the month of May, and summarized the highlights. 
 

The College hosted the Greater Philadelphia Chamber of Commerce’s Roadmap for 
Growth Policy Forum on May 24, 2016.   

 
The College hosted the 2016 PHL Diversity/Greater Philadelphia Hotel Association 

Hospitality Education Day on June 2, 2016.  
 
Members of the Board were urged to complete the Strategic Planning Survey.   
 
A special meeting of the Board of Trustees will take place on Thursday, June 30, 2016 at 

3:00 p.m. to approve the College’s budget. 
 
(11) New Business 
 
 No new business was discussed at the meeting. 
 
(12) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, June 30, 2016 at 
3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 4:55 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

11



12



13



MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Community College of Philadelphia  

Wednesday, June 6, 2016 – 12:00 Noon 
Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 

 

Present: Mr. Anthony J. Simonetta, Mr. Jeremiah White (via telephone), Dr. Donald 
Generals, Jr., Mr. Jacob Eapen, Mr. Todd E. Murphy, Mr. James P. Spiewak, Mr. 
Robert Lucas, Victoria Zellers, Esq.; and representing Grant Thornton:  Mr. Brian 
Page and Ms. Angelica Roiz and representing The Meridian Group:  Mr. Anthony 
B. Scott (via telephone) 

 

AGENDA – PUBLIC SESSION 

 
1. Approve Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting on March 29, 2016 (Action 

Item): 
 

Action:  Mr. Simonetta asked for a motion to recommend acceptance of the 
March 29, 2016 Audit Committee meeting minutes.  Mr. White made the motion.  Mr. 
Simonetta seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

2. 2015-2016 Audit Process (Information Item): 
 
 Attachment A contains the formal presentation made by Mr. Brian Page, 
Engagement Partner, Ms. Angelica Roiz, Senior Manager, from Grant Thornton and Mr. 
Anthony Scott (via telephone) from the Meridian Group.  Mr. Page began his discussion 
by informing the Committee that he has had discussions with staff throughout the year 
about activities that have been happening at the College.  He then walked through his 
presentation highlighting areas of focus, audit approach, as well as new accounting 
pronouncements that will affect this year’s 2015-2016 audit as well as future fiscal 
years.  He discussed the responsibilities of the auditors as it relates to the audit and he 
noted that auditing standards have remained relatively the same as last year with no 
significant changes.  He pointed out that this year the College falls under the “Uniform 
Guidance” which used to be OMB Circular A-133.  Basically, this guidance is a 
reclassification and combining of grant standards as well as some changes in report 
wording and the audit opinion. 

 
 Mr. Page also discussed the required communications that Grant Thornton will 
present as a result of the audit.  He then briefly discussed the significant audit areas as 
outlined in Attachment A.  He described the audit methodology, audit approach, 
timeline, as well as management’s responsibilities and those charged with governance.   

  

14



 Mr. Page stated that his team will be on campus this week to focus on planning 
procedures; finalizing their risk assessment; and performing any interim testing the 
auditors feel appropriate.  He indicated that they have already reviewed many of the 
new activities that the College has completed or is pursuing this year and has reviewed 
the new accounting pronouncements that could impact the College in conjunction with 
the year end audit. 
 
 Mr. Page asked the Committee members if there were any other areas that the 
Committee would like the audit team to focus on or matters of fraud risk that they might 
have concerns.  The Committee members affirmed that they were satisfied with the 
proposed audit scope. 
   

Mr. Simonetta asked about the audit fee for 2016.  Mr. Page explained that it is 
outlined in the fee proposal that was submitted for the RFP process.  Mr. Murphy noted 
that the fee proposal was for a period of five years and the College is in year three. 

 
Mr. Page briefly discussed materiality and how the auditors develop a baseline 

for testing transactions for both the Financial Statements and Single Audits. The auditors 
take a quantitative benchmark approach but do adjust qualitatively. 

 
 Ms. Angelica Roiz then walked through the timeline, areas of focus and high risk 
areas that the audit team will concentrate on during the audit; specifically, tuition 
revenue recognition, accounts receivables, state and city appropriations, state and 
federal contracts, investments and auxiliary income.  The audit team will perform 
reasonableness tests on all income to ensure proper accounting. She also explained that 
they will be looking at Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 68 which was 
implemented by the College last year. This standard requires the College to set up a 
liability on the College’s books for both cost sharing pension plans in which some faculty 
and staff participate.  An actuarial calculation will determine the value that the College 
will be required to record, which is completed by actuaries hired by the State. These 
plans are not offered to new employees.  However, if a faculty or staff member were 
enrolled at a previous employer, the College is required to continue to offer that plan.  
The two plans are PERS (Public Employees’ Retirement System) and SERS (State 
Employees’ Retirement System).  Currently, only 23 employees participate in PERS and 9 
employees in SERS. 

 
Mr. Murphy mentioned that the College is also undergoing another GASB 45 

Assessment.  This report is prepared by the College’s actuary to determine the OPEB 
(Other Post Employee Benefit Liability) that the College is required to record and is 
currently phasing in over 30 years.  Mr. Page noted that his team will be reviewing all of 
the assumptions that go into that calculation.  Mr. Eapen noted the College will be using 
the same firm “Clarity in Numbers, LLC” as in the prior assessment. 

 
 Mr. Page discussed the process for determining what Federal programs will be 
audited as part of the Single audit.  Specifically, student financial aid is always audited 
given its size.  Other programs will be determined in the next few weeks.  
  
 
 

  

15



Mr. Page discussed technology support for the audit.  The auditors will review 
access to the systems as well as security controls, change management and any other 
controls that may impact the College’s financial statements. Grant Thornton’s 
Information Technology (IT) control review related to the College’s ERP system is 
currently under review now and expects no significant change from last year.  The Audit 
team has brought up a couple of minor recommendations in the past, but nothing 
significant. 

 Mr. Simonetta asked if the College had significantly changed anything from an IT 
systems perspective.  Mr. Page and Mr. Murphy affirmed there had not been any 
changes. Mr. Page noted that his team will also review and test any one time 
transactions that could potentially impact the College’s financial statements. 
  
 Mr. Page then discussed several new GASB accounting pronouncements and 
updates.  The first was GASB 72 effective for this year, which deals with how the College 
reports fair value of investments in its financial statements.  He indicated that this 
should not have a huge impact for the College, but will require additional disclosures in 
the footnotes that show how they are categorized based on how fair value is 
determined.  
  

Mr. Simonetta asked if the College had to go back to the prior year in completing 
the new disclosures.  Mr. Page stated that it was not required but is allowable. 
 

The second was GASB 75 which is effective for fiscal year 2018, which will have 
the biggest accounting effect.  Currently the College’s OPEB Liability is being phased in 
over 30 years.  This new pronouncement will require the full amount of that liability to 
be included in the financial statements for that year. Mr. Page noted that this will have a 
huge impact on many colleges and Government agencies.  This will increase the overall 
liability and decrease the College’s net assets.   
 

Mr. Simonetta asked if the rating agencies have weighed in on this new 
standard.  Mr. Page stated that rating agencies are generally in favor of more 
disclosures, but did not have any comments to its implementation.  They already looked 
at this when they do their own reviews and due diligence. 

 
The third was GASB 80, which discusses blending component units.  The College 

will have to review the criteria and make a determination if it can continue to show the 
Foundation’s financials discretely or be required to blend it with the College in its 
financials. 

 
The fourth was GASB 81, which refers to irrevocable split-interest agreements.  

Mr. Page mentioned he had been in discussions with staff regarding a potential 
endowment that may fall into this criteria, which will allow the Foundation to record a 
beneficial interest in that Trust.  This won’t be effective this fiscal year, but could be 
early adopted. 

 
Mr. Page mentioned several different major projects that GASB is currently 

working on that may impact the College at a future date, which is outlined in 
Attachment A.  He then asked the Committee if there were any questions on where they 
will be spending their time this year or an area that the Committee would like them to 
focus.  Mr. White asked them to take a look at the transactions associated with the 15th 
and Hamilton Street property in terms of the legal structure between the College and 

16



the developer.  Mr. Page stated that he will be reviewing the agreements to make sure 
they line up with the accounting standards.  Mr. Eapen stated that he will provide the 
draft letter of intent when it is completed and seek Grant Thornton’s guidance.    

 
 The next discussion focused on some industry updates regarding the challenges 
colleges and universities are facing, such as enrollment, retention and demographic 
changes. As part of the audit, Grant Thornton will sit down with staff to see if there are 
any industry topics that the College would like discussed at the next Audit Committee 
meeting.  
 

Mr. White asked that given the previous state budget impasse, what rating 
agencies might do if another state budget problem arose.  Mr. Page indicated that the 
agencies will most likely have concerns with anything that could affect liquidity.  

 
Mr. White also asked Mr. Page if based on industry trends, he sees colleges 

investing significantly more into retention type activities?  Mr. Page stated he is 
definitely seeing colleges investing in this area given some of the demographic trends.   

 
Dr. Generals discussed how the College is carefully looking at the balance 

between affordability and revenue.  He asked if there were any concerns the Auditors 
had with respect to not raising tuition in the last three years. Mr. Page indicated that 
there is some tipping point between prospective buyers (students) affordability and 
tuition increases. However, the College cannot continue with small tuition increases with 
expenses going up annually.  Unfortunately, this may eventually decrease the College’s 
operating margins unless things are done more efficiently in other areas to reduce 
expenses or the College develops alternative revenue streams.   
  
 Mr. Page concluded his presentation. 
 
  

3. 2015-2016 Budget Update (Information Item): 
 
 Mr. Spiewak provided a handout (Attachment B) to the Committee, which was 
previously presented at the May 23, 2016 Business Affairs Committee Meeting. The 
implications of key factors currently impacting the FY 15-16 budget were discussed. He 
described how the College exceeded its enrollment target for the late Summer and Fall 
semesters but fell short of enrollment budget target for Spring of 2016 by 4.8%. In 
addition, the early Summer semester is also experiencing a decline of about 13%.  For 
the fiscal year, credit hours is expected to be down about 1.5% from budget.  In terms 
of revenue, the College is expected to be down a total of $2.5 million. Tuition and fee 
revenue is projected to be approximately $2.2 million lower than budgeted and the 
actual state appropriation is about $500,000 lower than budgeted.  Expenses are 
expected to decrease overall by $3.0 million.  Savings were realized from higher-than-
budgeted lapsed salaries and lower claims in the College’s self-insured medical plan than 
budgeted.  Additionally, the FY14-15 pay-off of some of the College leases resulted in 
savings for the FY15-16 year. 
 
 Mr. Eapen noted that the discussion of the 2016-2017 Budget will be deferred 
until the September 29, 2016 meeting, after the Board of Trustees approves the budget 
on June 30, 2016.   
 

  

17



4. Internal Audit Plan (Information Item): 
 

Mr. Lucas provided an update of the 2014-2016 Internal Audit Plan (Attachment 
C).  He provided a copy of a summary report of activities since the last Audit Committee 
meeting as well as a copy of the audit plan for the two-year period ending June 2016 to 
the Committee members.  Mr. Lucas stated that, since the last meeting, he issued: 1) 
two finalized audit reports to management; and 2) one draft audit report to 
management.  Three other internal audits are in progress and are expected to be 
completed by June 30. 

 
Mr. Lucas also noted that he continues to work with management to obtain the 

status of previously issued audit comments.  He noted that management continues to 
make progress clearing open items.  Mr. Lucas noted that he will provide a full update of 
the open items at the next Audit Committee meeting in September. 

 
As part of the effort to develop an Internal Audit Plan for 2016-2018, Mr. Lucas 

stated that he met with all of the Cabinet members to discuss the risks that may exist in 
their respective divisions.  Mr. Lucas used the information solicited from the Cabinet 
members to update the Internal Audit Risk Assessment for 2016.  A copy of the risk 
assessment was provided to the Audit Committee members, which includes 
approximately 120 auditable areas that are each rated for various risks to help 
determine where Internal Audit resources should be allocated. 

 
Lastly, Mr. Lucas noted that he developed a proposed Internal Audit Plan for the 

two-year period of July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2018.  A copy of the proposed plan was 
provided to the Audit Committee members.  Mr. Lucas noted that the plan has been 
provided to Dr. Gay, Jacob Eapen and Dr. Generals for their review.  Mr. Lucas will be 
meeting with each of them to discuss the plan and to obtain their approvals for a final 
plan, which will be provided to the Audit Committee as an informational item.  Mr. Lucas 
expects to be able to distribute the approved 2016-2018 Internal Audit Plan to the Audit 
Committee members by June 30, 2016. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

During any Audit Committee meeting; Management, The Independent Auditors or the 
Internal Auditor may request an Executive Session to meet privately with the Audit 
Committee.  None was requested at this meeting.    

 
 
TEM/lmh 
Attachments 
 
cc:   Dr. Donald Generals, Jr. 
 Mr. Jacob Eapen 
 Mr. Robert Lucas 
 Mr. Jim Spiewak 
 Victoria Zellers, Esq. 
 Representing Grant Thornton:  Mr. Brian Page 
 Representing Grant Thornton:  Ms. Angelica Roiz 
 Representing The Meridian Group:  Mr. Anthony B. Scott 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



 

 

MEETING OF THE BUSINESS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Community College of Philadelphia  
Wednesday, June 22, 2016 - 10:00 A.M. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 
 

Present: Mr. Matthew Bergheiser, presiding; Mr. Steve Herzog, Stella Tsai, Esq. (via 
teleconference – Executive Session), Mr. Jeremiah J. White, Jr., Dr. Donald 
Generals, Mr. Jacob Eapen, Mr. Todd E. Murphy, Mr. James P. Spiewak, and 
Victoria Zellers, Esq. 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Discussion of legal matters was held. 
 

AGENDA – PUBLIC SESSION 
 

(1) Fixed Stair Replacement in West Building (Action Item): 
 

Discussion:  Committee members discussed contractor issues related to the Fixed Stair 
Replacement Project in the West Building.  A re-bid of the project commenced under RFP #9931.  
At the conclusion of the RFP process, Torrado Construction Company Inc. was the apparent lowest 
responsible bidder.  (Bid results are displayed below) 

 
An AIA contract was sent to Torrado Construction Company Inc. for execution, but has 

not been executed.  Additionally, Torrado Construction Company Inc. has not been able to acquire 
the Performance & Payment Bond which is a requirement for this project as per the Pennsylvania 
Code, Chapter 35 Section 35.51, Bidding and Awarding of Contracts.  Accordingly, staff 
recommended moving forward with the next lowest responsible bidder, A.P. Construction.   

 
Bid Summary:   

 

 
Bid 

Torrado 
Construction 

 
A.P. Construction 

 
JPC Group, Inc. 

RFP#9931 $ 1,374,000.00 $ 1,762,000.00 $ 2,565,000.00 

 
 
Action:  Mr. White moved and Mr. Herzog seconded the motion authorizing staff to 

contract with the second lowest responsible bidder, A.P. Construction Company, if deemed 
necessary.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 
(2) Fiscal Year 2016-17 Operating and Capital Budget (Action Item): 
 

Discussion:  Dr. Generals provided the Committee members with an overview of the 
College’s budget scenario for fiscal year 2016-17 including the strategic initiatives that are 
incorporated into the budget plan.  Mr. Eapen and Mr. Spiewak described the budgetary 
assumptions and related financial tables.  Committee members further discussed the budget 

76



 

 

document in relation to the operating and capital revenues and expenses as it relates to the 
strategic goals.   

 
Action:  Mr. Herzog moved and Mr. White seconded the motion to recommend the 

adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016-17 Operating and Capital Budget to the full Board.  The motion 
passed unanimously.   

 
(3) Solar Panel Project (Action Item): 

 
Discussion:  Mr. Eapen explained that faculty, staff and students presented the concept 

of a solar energy source to demonstrate the renewable and sustainable alternative energy now 
being taught in several disciplines.  This team presented a proposal to the President’s Cabinet for 
funding under the College’s Innovation Fund.  He explained the various components of the project 
and uses for the power generated by the solar panels. 

 
A scope of work was written and included in a formal Request for Proposals, RFP #9935, 

then posted on Penn Bid.  A mandatory pre-bid meeting was attended by several bidders but only 
one, Solar States, responded.  Additionally, Solar States was the only supplier that expressed an 
interest and commitment in supporting the educational aspect of the project.   

 
Action:  Mr. White moved and Mr. Herzog seconded the motion that the Committee 

recommend to the full Board that the Solar Panel Project contract for $89,470.00 be awarded to 
Solar States.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 
(4) 2016-17 Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal Program (Action Item): 

 
Discussion:  Mr. Spiewak referred Committee members to Attachment A for background 

information.  He noted that the results of the marketing of the College’s insurance program were 
very successful.  Overall, the premiums for all insurance policies decreased by approximately 
$27,000.  This was the fourth consecutive year the College has experienced an overall decrease in 
insurance premiums and has reached a low point in costs which may be difficult to continue in 
subsequent years.  All policies had stable or declining premiums with the exception of the general 
liability policy which has a 7.7% premium increase.  The workers’ compensation policy has an 11.7% 
decrease in premium.  Overall, College insurance premiums will decrease 3.2% from $851,572 to 
$824,197. 

 
Mr. Spiewak pointed out two notable events associated with the renewal.  The Security and 

Privacy (Cyber Liability) policy is being switched from AIG to Travelers with the policy limit increasing 
from $1 million to $3 million and the number of covered affected individuals increasing from 250,000 
to 500,000.  He noted that College staff will explore methods to limit the number of affected 
individuals in the unlikely scenario of a data breach.  The crime policy is being supplemented with a 
“Social Engineering Fraud Activity” endorsement that protects the College in the event of a funds 
transfer initiated by the College to a fraudulent account due to deceptive activities. 

 
Action:  Mr. Herzog moved and Mr. White seconded the motion that the Committee 

recommend to the full Board approval of the 2016-17 insurance program with a total cost, including 
broker fee, of $55,000 per Willis Towers Watson’s five-year contract, of $879,197.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
  

77



 

 

(5) Consultant for CCTV System for College Security (Action Item):   
 

Background: 
The Community College of Philadelphia issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) #9925 to 

select a Security Subject Matter Expert to support the College in modernizing and upgrading its 
security system technologies which include system upgrades to Access Control, Closed Circuit 
Television (CCTV) and Multi Use Radio Service (MURS) to optimize compliance with the FCC 
service rules governing expanding operational needs.  

 
Mr. Eapen explained the need for this critical activity.  He noted that the RFP was sent to 

13 firms with 2 firms submitting proposals, Sentinel Consulting and Elert & Associates. 
 
Each of the respondents were interviewed by a 5-member evaluation team.  At the 

conclusion of the interviews, the two firms were both deemed qualified to manage this project; 
however, one firm had more relevant experience working with higher education institutions. 

 
Staff recommended awarding the contract to Elert & Associates.  The evaluation team felt 

Elert was best prepared to assist the College with the project based upon the many similar 
projects they have undertaken at other higher education institutions and references to support 
their work.  The bid price of the two firms is below. 
 

Elert & Associates - $103,100 (recommended) 
Sentinel Consulting - $138,178 
 
Action:  Mr. White moved and Mr. Herzog seconded the motion that the Committee 

recommend to the full Board that Elert & Associates be awarded a contract as the consultant for 
the CCTV System for College security in the amount of $103,100.  The motion passed 
unanimously.   

 
 

Prior to adjournment, Dr. Generals and Mr. Eapen responded to Committee members’ 
questions concerning College security efforts. 

 
(6) Next Meeting: 

 
The next meeting date of the Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, September 21, 

2016 at 10:00 A.M. in the College’s Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1.   
 

 
 
 
JE/lm 
Attachments 
  

78



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

2016-17 PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RENEWAL 
PROGRAM 

 
  

79



 

 

2016-17 Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal Program 
 

Introduction: 
The College insurance program is reviewed annually prior to the July 1 renewal.  During the 
renewal strategy meeting held on March 2, 2016, it was decided that Willis Towers Watson 
(the College’s current Broker) would approach the incumbent carriers and a few select 
insurers with higher education experience with the intent of securing identical (or better) 
coverage at premiums close to expiring.  This strategy was effective as all policies had stable 
or declining premiums with the exception of the general liability policy which has an 7.7% 
premium increase.  The workers’ compensation policy has a 11.7% decrease in premium.  
Overall, College insurance premiums will decrease from $851,572 to $824,197 or 3.2%. 
 
General Liability: 
The College's general liability coverage has been with United Educators (UE) for the past 
fifteen years.  Willis Towers Watson has opined that UE has the best General Liability (GL) 
policy form available in the higher education market offering the most comprehensive 
coverage.  United Educators offered a renewal premium of $180,770 which is $12,932 or 
7.7% higher than the expiring rate with no change to the deductibles ($25,000 each 
occurrence; $100,000 annual aggregate).  The College was again granted a 4% premium 
rate credit based upon certain risk management initiatives that were undertaken during the 
year.  Furthermore, the College is entitled to a dividend of $12,727 from United Educators if 
at least one coverage line (GL or Umbrella) is renewed.   This, in effect, makes the net cost 
to the College for fiscal year 2015-16 equal to $168,043.   United Educators is organized as 
a reciprocal risk retention group – owned by its members like CCP; this would be the sixth 
consecutive year that the College will have received a dividend.   The 6-year aggregate 
dividend to the College totals $89,923. 
 
Umbrella: 
The College’s umbrella liability coverage ($25 million for any one loss) has also been with 
United Educators for fifteen years.  UE’s policy form offers the most comprehensive coverage 
in the higher education market for umbrella/excess coverage according to Willis Towers 
Watson.  United Educators offered a renewal rate of $87,075 which is $239 lower than the 
previous year’s premium.  This policy also sits on top of the $1 million coverage for student 
medical malpractice insurance.  It also provides excess general liability, automobile liability, 
employers’ liability and foreign liability insurance.  As with the general liability policy, the 
College was granted a 4 percent premium reduction based upon certain risk management 
initiatives that were undertaken during the year.    
 
Workers' Compensation: 
Amerihealth, the incumbent carrier and an Independence Blue Cross subsidiary, offered a 
renewal rate of $249,913 which is $33,195 (11.7%) lower than the expiring premium.  
The Human Resources Office and the College’s Safety Committee continue to review all 
work-related claims and offer recommendations and training efforts where needed.  The 
College’s Safety Committee again received re-certification from the PA Department of 
Labor; this automatically makes the College eligible for a 5 percent reduction in premium.   
 
Property: 
Affiliated FM quoted a rate of $166,554 or $26 lower than the expiring premium.  The College 
will have a blanket limit of $357,732,000 with a deductible of $25,000.  This policy also 

80



 

 

provides $7 million of business interruption insurance.  Affiliated is providing a two-year rate 
guarantee; next year’s policy will only increase due to increases in insured values. 
 
Educator Legal Liability: 
The ELL policy provides management liability protection ($15 million limit with a $75,000 
retention) for the College’s Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s Board of Trustees, 
employment practices liability, employed lawyers liability and professional liability for 
faculty and staff.  AIG, the incumbent carrier, provided a quote of $86,204 that is the same 
as the expiring premium.   
 
Automobile: 
The incumbent carrier, Philadelphia Insurance Co., offered a renewal rate of $17,284 
which is $7,253 lower than the current year.  The automobile policy covers employees 
driving College owned, rented or hired vehicles as well as providing collision and 
comprehensive coverage for the College’s vehicles.  This renewal premium is based upon 
the current number of vehicles insured by the College. 
 
Student Medical Malpractice: 
CNA offered a quote of $7,670 that is $875 lower than the expiring premium.  The College 
again received rate reductions for being a long-term client (4+ years) and for having no 
claims during the most recent four-year period.  The number of students participating in 
clinical settings affects the cost of this insurance.  This policy provides $1 million in coverage 
to the College and to students and faculty related to their activities in a clinical setting. 
 
Crime: 
Travelers, the incumbent carrier, offered a renewal rate of $5,413 that is $90 lower than 
the expiring rate.  Travelers offered this rate based upon their opinion that the College 
had strong existing internal control features to prevent employee theft. This policy 
provides the College with protection against 1st party (employee) theft and 3rd party theft 
and fraud for a limit of $4 million.  The College also received a quote for optional “social 
engineering fraud/ funds transfer” coverage at a cost of $165.  This provides coverage 
should an employee unwittingly transfer College assets to a fraudulent third party due to 
deceptive activities.  Travelers has committed to a 3-year rate guarantee on this policy. 
 
International Liability: 
This policy provides foreign-based general liability, automobile liability, and workers’ 
compensation coverage as well as travel, medical and security assistance services for faculty 
and staff traveling abroad.  This policy also includes kidnap and extortion coverage.   The 
College purchased a three-year policy last fiscal year at an annual cost of $3,324.   
 
 
 
 
Security and Privacy (Cyber Insurance): 
The College first secured this line of coverage for the 2011-2012 fiscal year.  This insurance 
offers protection to the College if there were data security breaches or compromises of 
student and/or employee “private” information (as determined by federal and state 
jurisdiction).  The carrier will provide forensic and legal assistance from a panel of experts to 
help determine the extent of the breach and the steps required to comply with applicable 
laws, include the following:  notification to persons who must be notified under applicable 

81



 

 

law or on a voluntary basis; offer 12 months of 3-bureau credit monitoring to affected 
individuals; identify theft-related fraud resolution services for individuals enrolled in credit 
monitoring who become victims of identity theft;  and extend coverage for theft, loss or 
unauthorized disclosure of information held by business associates as defined by HIPPA.  First 
party benefits include protection for data recovery and business interruption, extortion 
threats and regulatory defense and penalties.  The policy also protects the College against 
3rd party legal action for damages arising from the alleged breach (including defense costs).   
 
The College currently has a policy limit of $1 million and offers notification and credit 
monitoring services for up to 250,000 affected individuals.  The renewal quote received from 
AIG, is $17,385 and a comparable policy from Travelers is quoted at $10,889.  Staff 
requested that Willis Towers Watson solicit additional options from both carriers increasing 
both the policy limit and the number of affected individuals.  The most attractive option 
reviewed is from Travelers.  It has a policy limit of $3 million and offers notification and credit 
monitoring services for up to 500,000 affected individuals.  The cost of the policy with these 
optional limits is $18,441. 
   
 
Broker Fee: 
The annual fee for 2016-17 is $55,000 which represents the fifth year amount as outlined in 
Willis’ proposal to the College’s RFP issued in 2012. 
  

82



 

 

 
Recommendation: 
College staff, after carefully considering the available options internally and with its broker 
representatives, recommends that the College procure insurance as detailed below. 

 

 

       Expiring  Renewal 
       (2015-16)  (2016-17) 

Coverage    Carrier   Premium  Premium 

General Liability ($1M)   United Educators  $167,838      $180,770 

Umbrella ($25M)   United Educators      87,314      87,075 

Workers’ Compensation  Amerihealth     283,108     249,913 

Property    Affiliated FM     166,580     166,554 

Educators Legal Liability ($15M) AIG                  86,204       86,204 

Automobile    Phila. Insurance Co.      24,537       17,284 

Student Medical Professional  

  Liability ($1M)   CNA          8,545         7,670 

Crime ($4M)    Travelers         5,503         5,578 

International Liability   Navigators         3,324                    3,324 

Security & Privacy ($3M for FY17) Travelers       17,235        18,441 

Travel Accident             1,384          1,384 

TOTAL INSURANCE PREMIUMS    $851,572             $824,197 

Broker Fee   Willis Towers Watson   $   50,000     $  55,000 

 

 

83


	June30tableofcontents
	6.30.16agenda
	Proceedings6.2.16
	Minutes6.2.16
	June2016Gifts&grants
	6-6-16 Audit Committee Meeting Minutes(1)
	060616 Audit Minutes Final.pdf
	Attachment A - Grant Thornon 15-16 Audit Process 6-6-16 2.pdf
	Attachment B - 15-16 Budget Update 6-6-16.pdf
	Attachment C - Internal Audit Plan - 6-6-16 2.pdf

	Business Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes June 22, 2016



